
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

6:00 PM 
 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Approval of Agenda 

New Business 
3. Minutes – March 6, 2019 

4. Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot 

 

5. Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

6. Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

Adjournment 
  

1



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   
Meeting opening -  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

2



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Minutes – March 6, 2019 

Summary:   
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

4



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

March 06, 2019 
 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, March 6, 2019, was called 

to order at 6:01 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Barbara Heck 

Lucy Hunter 

Bill Bear 

Charles Stewart 

 

Absent commission members were as follows: 

Monica Foguth 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart, supported by Ms. Hunter to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – February 5, 2019 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter, supported by Mr. Bear to accept the planning commission minutes for – 

February 5, 2019, as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Special Use Permit - Zimmer - 397 Clark Avenue # A 
Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Zimmer’s special use permit to 

manufacture pottery at - 397 Clark Avenue # A.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the administrator notes, informing the planning commission 

members regarding the business that was happening in the residential area at 397 Clark Avenue # 

A.  

  

Points Informed to Committee: 

● I-1 zone requires a special use permit. 

● Duration of the manufacturing of the pottery not being recognizable. 

● Tenant advertised on Facebook a pottery one-day class. 

● The town became aware and informed owner of the requirement that needed to be met. 

  

 

Discussion ensued the potential impact in the air and water quality, due to potential use of toxic 

materials during the manufacturing process of pottery. 

5



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Mr. Zimmer communicated to the committee members that he is not familiar with the process 

and assured that the air and water quality is considered not to be impacted. Jasmine tenant at 397 

Clark Avenue # A communicated to the committee members there are no toxic materials being 

used in the process of manufacturing pottery and clay traps have been placed. 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart withdrawn by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of the special use permit to manufacture pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A. Motion 

carried unanimously 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of the artistic manufacturing of pottery at 397 Clark Avenue # A. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Discussion ensued with much deliberation regarding traffic at 397 Clark Avenue # A and the 

impact in the surrounding residential area would have.  

 

Traffic Impact Discussion Points: 

● Curve cut off warehouse B concerns 

● Heavy traffic on Minnesota Rd. and Clark Rd 

● Two-way traffic between Minnesota Rd and Clark Rd 

● Protection and maintenance of the East side of the Minnesota Rd sidewalk 

●  Emplace a traffic control sign  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the times and how often workshops will be conducted at 397 Clark 

Avenue # A warehouses. Mr. Zimmer communicated the time of these workshops would be 

during evenings and weekends. The warehouse contains (5) five kiln wheels, the use of these 

wheels is (1) one person per kiln wheel a total of (5) five people attending the workshop.  

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart, supported by Mr. Bear to recommend to the Board of Trustees the 

approval of a workshop limit of (5) five students (3) three times per month. Motion carried 

unanimously 

 

Discussion ensued concern regarding the retail sales use in an area zoned industrial with 

residential use, containing commercial activities.  

  

Discussion Points: 

 Kiln opening parties 

● Creating a retail center 

● The frequency of retail sales 

 

Motion by Mr. Bear supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of an approach apron and traffic control sign at the intersection of Minnesota Avenue curb cut. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Ms. Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of limited retail sales activity with limits being determined by the Board of Trustees. 

Motion carried unanimously 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 6:54 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

 

 

6



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot 

Summary:   
Mr. Gruenefeldt requests a variance be granted for the non-conforming lot located at 120 North Fork 
Avenue.  Mr. Gruenefeldt wishes to build a home on the lot, replacing a mobile home removed.  The 
variance is required because more than 12 months have passed since the non-conforming mobile 
home was removed.   
 

Staff:  Mr. Gruenefeldt would have been able to replace the mobile home if he had acted within 12 
months.  Removing old out-of-date mobile homes with a site built home approves the appearance 
and character of the Town.  Without a variance the lot is now undevelopable.  However, staff believes 
that variances should be issued only in extreme and unusual circumstances.  The Planning Board 
needs to consider whether or not these circumstances rise to the level of granting a variance.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:   

7



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

Summary:   
Mr. Skeels requests a variance for a section of fence measuring 8ft. Municipal Code only allows for 6ft 
in the property zone..   
 

Staff:  A fence height of 8’ is not normally allowed within a residential zone.  Staff believes that 
variances should be issued only in extreme and unusual circumstances.  The Planning Board should 
give careful consideration as to whether or not this request rises to those circumstances.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

Summary:   
Mary Bachran requests permission to continue her sewing business within her home. 
 

Staff does not have any issues for review with this application.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 9, 2019 
 

Agenda Item # CALL

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vote: Barb Heck: Bill Bear: Monica Foguth:  

Lucy Hunter: Charles Stewart:  

 

 

 

 
 

 

56


	Top
	1. Roll
	ASF - Roll Call.docx

	2. Agenda
	ASF - Agenda Approval.docx

	3. ASF - Minutes
	ASF - Approval of Minutes.docx
	Planning Minutes Draft.docx

	4. Gruenefeldt
	ASF - Gruenefeldt Hearing.docx
	Gruenefeldt Letter of Support.pdf
	Gruenefeldt Plan A Application.pdf
	Gruenefeldt Plan B Application.pdf

	5. Skeels
	ASF - Skeels Hearing.docx
	Skeels Letter of Support.pdf
	Skeels Application Packet.pdf

	6. Bachran
	ASF - Bachran Hearing.docx
	Bachran Application Packet.pdf

	Bottom

